

# NAIROBI CITY COUNTY ASSEMBLY

# **OFFICIAL REPORT**

# Third County Assembly – Third Session

# Wednesday 24<sup>th</sup> April 2024

The House met at 2.30 p.m.

[The Speaker (Hon. Kennedy Ng'ondi) in the Chair]

### PRAYER

Hon. Speaker: Thank you Hon. Members, you may be seated.

# QUORUM

Clerk, confirm whether we have quorum in the Assembly.

(Clerk-at-the-Table confirmed there was no quorum)

Serjeant-at-Arms, under Standing Order No.37 (2), I direct you to ring the Bell for a record of ten minutes.

(The Quorum Bell was rung)

Hon. Members, it has been confirmed that we have quorum, we can transact the business of the day.

# STATEMENTS

Hon. Speaker: Hon. Hashim Kamau?

# **Point of Order**

Hon. Speaker: Yes, Hon. Majority Leader.

**Hon Peter Imwatok:** Hon. Speaker, I am seeking your indulgence because of pressing issues from the Executive side because of disaster. I am requesting if I could go to Order No. 8 and change the sequence.

**Hon. Speaker:** Hon. Majority Leader, being the Leader of the Government Business, your request must be taken seriously. But again, you could have briefed the House on the status of Nairobi on the floods, that one will come later.

In the sequence of the Business as requested, you have got the leave of the Chair. Clerk, let us move to Order No. 8.

### **PROCEDURAL MOTION**

# APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO SECTORAL COMMITTEE ON WATER AND SANITATION

### Hon Peter Imwatok: Thank you, Hon. Speaker.

THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Standing Order No. 209 (1), this Assembly approves the appointment of the following Members to the Sectoral Committee On Water and Sanitation.

- 1. The Hon. Paul Kados, MCA
- 2. The Hon. Kennedy Oyugi, MCA
- 3. The Hon. Asli Muhamed, MCA
- 4. The Hon. Wilfred Oluoch Odalo, MCA
- 5. The Hon. Collins Ogenga, MCA
- 6. The Hon. Catherine Apiyo Okoth, MCA
- 7. The Hon. Moses Ogeto, MCA
- 8. The Hon. Victor Ochola Omondi, MCA
- 9. The Hon. Jane Muasya, MCA
- 10. The Hon. Stazo Omung'ala, MCA
- 11. The Hon. Ochieng' Jera, MCA
- 12. The Hon. Lawrence Odhiambo, MCA
- 13. The Hon. Jeckoniah Onyango, MCA
- 14. The Hon. Eutychus Mukiri, MCA
- 15. The Hon. Chege Mwaura, MCA
- 16. The Hon. Nancy Mwaura, MCA
- 17. The Hon. Susan Makungu, MCA
- 18. The Hon. Anthony Ngaruiya, MCA
- 19. The Hon Joyce Muthoni, MCA
- 20. The Hon Paul Wachira, MCA
- 21. The Hon Carrington Heho, MCA
- 22. The Hon Mark Mugambi, MCA
- 23. The Hon. James Koria, MCA

I request my counterpart to second.

**Hon Anthony Karanja:** Hon. Speaker, I beg to second and thank the Majority Leader for re-aligning the new committees based on the emerging issues of service delivery to this City.

(Question proposed)

**Hon. Speaker:** Hon. Members, my screen is clear, an indication that there is no request to contribute on the said Motion. I direct the mover of the Motion to reply.

**Hon Peter Imwatok:** Hon. Speaker, I thank the County Assembly and the entire Members of this Committee. This interrupted business yesterday, I have no much to add. Thank you, you Hon. Speaker.

(Applause)

Hon. Speaker: Order, Hon. Members!

(*Question put and agreed to*)

(Applause)

Hon. Speaker: Next Order! Let us proceed with Motion No. 9.

#### MOTION

# ADOPTION OF REPORT ON THE SUPPLEMENTARY BUDGET (I) ESTIMATES (I) FOR THE FY 2023/2024

#### Hon Wilfred Odalo: Hon. Speaker, I beg to move:

THAT, this Assembly adopts the 17<sup>th</sup> Report of The Select Committee on County Finance, Budget and Appropriations on the Supplementary Budget (I) Estimates for the FY 2023/2024 for the Nairobi City County Government and Nairobi City County Assembly, laid on the table of the Assembly on Tuesday 23rd April 2024.

Hon. Speaker, the drafters of the legal framework mandated to guide the budget making process at both levels of the government. Out of the abundance questions laid on elaborate framework meant to ensure that those entrusted with the public office remain true to their oath of office and make the promise that propel them to power.

Hon. Speaker, having reviewed the subjected supplementary (I) estimates for the financial year 2023-2024, the budget committee is convinced that the proposed adjustments and reallocations are well intentioned and shall be proposing the various areas that require amendments.

Hon. Speaker, the pending bills have been in the county making process and has remained a thorn in the fresh for this county government. The half year revenue expenditure report for the financial year 2023-2024, relays that the pending bills figure stood at Kshs.107 billion. This county assembly as its first made well intended efforts and in particular during the consideration of CFSP 2023 resolved that the County Executive to formulate a strategy to improve the overstretching pending bills.

Hon. Speaker, as the city population continues to grow, Nairobians encounters mirage of challenges ranging from natural calamities to disasters like the one we are experiencing now. As we have witnessed in the last one week, the rainy season has commenced and the Metrological

Department has issued warning that Nairobians should take caution. Hon. Speaker, on that note, the committee has reviewed the disaster money from Kshs. 240 million to Kshs. 440 million.

Hon. Speaker, on garbage collection, the committee is aligned tot eh Governor's Address on the state of the county two weeks ago. In this regard, the high volume of wastage that the city is reducing compared to the capacity of the county government can manage to collect. In order to keep Nairobi clean, allocation towards solid waste management has been increased from 890 million by 51 and 60 million respectively.

Hon. Speaker, the human capital in ensuring that the County Government delivers on its mandate to Nairobians cannot be ignored. On that note, Hon. Speaker, it is the view of the Budget Committee that the total allocation for County executive salaries and wages be increased. You are aware of the newly employed Constables and Cleaners, be reviewed and be increased to Kshs. 3 billion. County Constables has approved an additional allocation of 100 million to cater for their training expenses.

Hon. Speaker, on building materials, the County Executive intends to enhance the capacity of local engineers to undertake rod repairs. The internal repair of roads shall ensure that we spend less but more therefore will cover our wards – sorry for that confusion. To achieve this, the allocation for Mobility and Works be enhanced to Kshs.400 million.

Hon. Speaker, the Ward Development Fund has remained over the years remained an important tool for the implementation of priority projects that the members of this county assembly with the input from the public have identified in the 85 wards. To ensure that the priority projects, the current financial year who certificate shall be ready by the end of the financial year are paid, the committee has approved the additional allocation of Kshs.100 million towards Ward Development Fund.

Hon. Speaker, on health commodities, the committee recognizes the need to ensure that all county health facilities are equipped to meet the growing needs of the public. On the greatest resolution to the achieve this task ahead, the committee has increased the allocation of health sector by 300 million.

Hon. Speaker, on the issue of Kshs. 660,000, the committee has increased a budget of 356 million to be allocated to cater for both issues of the county assembly and this issue.

#### (Applause)

Hon. Speaker, in conclusion and pursuant to provisions of Sections 135 and 154 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and Standing Order No. 234, the Select Committee on County Finance, Budget and Appropriation recommend that; This County Assembly adopts the 17<sup>th</sup> Report of the Select Committee On County Finance, Budget and Appropriation on the Supplementary Budget (I) Estimates for the Nairobi City County and the County Assembly for the Financial Year 2023-2024.

Hon. Speaker, I call upon the Minority Whip, who is a Member of Budget Committee, to second the Motion.

Hon Mark Mugambi: Thank you, Hon. Speaker. I would like to commend my Chairperson...

Hon. Speaker: First, can you make a pronouncement whether you are seconding the Motion.

Hon Mark Mugambi: Chair, I am seconding the Motion. I was just building up my case as to why I am seconding.

Hon. Speaker: Thank you.

Hon Mark Mugambi: Hon. Speaker, the 123 Members of this House have been on you case for the longest time because of the issue of their car reimbursements of Kshs. 660,000, as they call it. I remember we were told that we need to find a way in which Members can be reimbursed the said amounts following the right procedure and the right budgetary allocation for the same. We all know that this is a House of witch hunt from within...

Hon. Speaker: Kindly, Hon. Whip, that is not expected of you, kindly withdraw.

Hon Mark Mugambi: I withdraw and apologize. This is a House of decorum, where some Members will wait for you to do a mistake and use it as evidence to other authorities. Therefore, I commend the Members...

Hon. Speaker: Have you just said Members, or some?

Hon Mark Mugambi: Some. I commend Members for the patience they have exercised. As the leadership of this House led by son of Teso, the faithful Bishop and the Chair Budget, as they were working their way to find the best way possible to get the Kshs. 660,000 in their accounts. The time is here, Hon. Speaker, and once we pass this budget, let the Executive expedite the needed process so that each Member will be smiling during the recess. We should actually try as much as possible to get these monies before we break for recess, Hon. Speaker.

# (Applause)

Hon. Speaker: When is the recess, Hon. Member?

Hon Mark Mugambi: It will be in May, next week on Thursday.

Hon. Speaker: You should be very sensitive on monetary issues.

Hon Mark Mugambi: Hon. Speaker, that is why I am saying that we are going to try as much as possible, the key word is 'try'.

Hon. Speaker: You are making a commitment before the Assembly that the leadership will try?

Hon Mark Mugambi: Personally, I can push where I can. iI all depends on the time taken in uploading of the said budget and the time taken for the work plan to be taken to the COB. We are all privy to that and that is why I am saying, we try and push. If we can have the money before we go for recess, the better, if we can't, let us make sure that before the recess ends each member will have gotten the same.

We also have projects that ought to be paid especially the pending bills. We have seen the media centralizing this issue. Once this supplementary budget is passed, we shall be able to pay the contractors and suppliers who have genuine bills in this county. With these few remarks Hon. Speaker, allow me to second the doctor.

Hon. Speaker: Thank you.

### (Question proposed)

Hon. Speaker: Hon. Members, my screen is clear. Majority Leader. please.

Hon Peter Imwatok: Hon. Speaker, allow me to add my voice as the leader of government business on this particular document. Aware that we are faced with a catastrophe not only in Nairobi but across the globe. Somebody has just told me as I support this motion, that it is the dream of every member is to travel to Dubai; one of the greatest cities in the world. But currently, if anyone told you he has a visa for you to travel to Dubai or Turkey or Singapore, you will say no, wait a bit because floods are wreaking these cities in a very hard way.

Hon. Speaker, I am looking at the budget timelines and I feel that is time that the Executive expedite on how to procure specific items for the members of this House especially the elected whose wards have been affected by the ranging floods for provision of food. Honestly Mr. Speaker, looking at some houses in Korogocho, Mheshimiwa Matach is here, some houses in Githurai, Kibra, Huruma, Mathare North, Kayole and even in Kilimani and Kileleshwa, it is happening.

I think upon the signing of the vellum by the Hon. Speaker, the Executive might expedite on this thing quickly. I want to put a pointer for clarity purposes because these are fodder for everyone in this County. I have seen the legal fees, the legal obligation of this County is kept at Kshs. 200 million. So, let it be noted on HANSARD that when you pass a supplementary budget, the legal obligation of this County is kept as Kshs. 200 million, up from Kshs. 87 million. This means there is an addition of Kshs. 133 million.

Hon. Speaker, on the issue of roads, all our roads especially the feeder roads in our estates are now not passable because of floods. I am aware as we talk here, the Executive is currently in the boardroom discussing the effects of floods. I want to implore the Executive, and I will follow it in person, that all roads in our wards which are impassable after the rains, should be rehabilitated internally. Therefore, we are asking the Executive that the Kshs. 400 million allocated in the budget be expressly used to purchase all the materials required so that the asphalt plant can work and all the graders can come to our wards and do carpeting.

Hon. Speaker, let me also ask the Executive, with all care they deserve, about the issue of bursaries. I hope by next week before we open the schools, upon the passing of this supplementary budget, the cheques will be released as quickly as possible. I am taking upon myself and my counterpart to ensure that before the public schools are opened, bursaries are released.

Lastly, Hon. Speaker, on the issue of Ward Development Fund, which is dear to my heart, I assure the Members of the committee who came to my office, and I call upon the Chair for Budget, that we must get additional funding of Kshs.359 million. So, Members who have project running in their wards, make sure the contractors and the engineers are on site to expedite the process of bringing in completion certificates so that we can discuss with the County Government to make sure all other payments to that effect happen.

I want also to report to this House that so far out of Kshs. 1.9 billion, the County Executive has executed almost Kshs.605 million in terms of payment of Ward Development Fund. As we are speaking, already processed in IB is another Kshs. 245 million. I am sure with our discussion with my counterpart and the CFO yesterday, it must be heading or it is already in the COB for facilitation. Therefore, we are in a rush of time to spend a deficit of not less than Kshs. 800 million between now and June 30.

The elected Members, kindly get in touch with the Chair of Ward Development Fund. If you cannot get him because he is always... I want to provide a section of my office for the Chair and the Vice Chair of Ward Development Fund as I am not always there. Between now and end of this month, we want to get all projects of the wards which are completed, which are not yet completed, and which have not begun so that we can be able to have a record of our own as we discuss with the Executive.

All said and done, Hon. Speaker, I must applaud the entire House for being patient with this particular issue of the budget. I encourage the Budget Committee as this is the first supplementary budget that has taken time. I gave my word here on behalf of the Assembly that we will not do budget lines in a rush. For the first time, I want to applaud the Budget Committee, it has taken its time to chisel this supplementary budget to where it is today.

Thank you so much, Hon. Speaker and thank the entire House. I beg the House humbly, on behalf of the Government, to support this supplementary budget for the Government to run. Thank you.

#### (Applause)

# Hon. Speaker: Hon. Kiragu.

**Hon. Anthony Karanja:** Thank you, Hon. Speaker, and congratulations Chairperson and my colleagues in the Budget Committee.

Hon. Speaker, when I look at item number two, I am excited because that is where the Kshs. 663,000 lies. So, I hope what the Majority has promised that he will follow through to make sure that by the time we go for recess in the coming week, the money should be on its way to our accounts.

Hon. Speaker, on item number four, the allocation of building materials under the Mobility and Works Sector be increased by Kshs. 100 million, this cannot be timelier than now so that by the time the rains subside, we will be able to repair our roads and bring them up to the standards that they are supposed to be.

Hon. Speaker, I beg to support and give people an opportunity to also support and be part of this wonderful document. Thank you.

# Hon. Speaker: Hon. Emily.

**Hon. Emily Oduor:** Thank you, Hon. Speaker. I stand to support this Motion. As you can see, this supplementary budget is short and clear. It seems as if God knew that we are going to face what we are currently facing, that is why we have allocated money to the disaster. You can see what we are going through, not only Nairobi but also the whole country. I should also bring it up

that we should not blame Nairobi because of floods, this is happening in other counties. We have put in money so that we will be able to help the people who are affected. It is unfortunate that today I was watching my Chairman's Ward, some of the residents are on top of the roof. If you look at almost every ward, there was a disaster happening. So, this is going to be executed so fast so that we are able to help Nairobians.

The special elect Members have been concerned about their office imprest. I assure you that it is part of that money that is going to be paid to you as soon as it is appropriated. With those few remarks, Hon Speaker, I support the Motion.

Hon. Speaker: Hon. Emmy Isalambo.

Hon. Emmy Isalambo: Thank you, Hon. Speaker for giving me this chance to support this Motion. First, I would like to congratulate the Chair of the Budget Committee and the Members. Under the Agriculture Sector where I am the Vice Chair, we have been given allocation. Therefore, I urge all the Members who had applied for greenhouses and everything, to get in touch with the Sector so that you are facilitated. I support. Thank you.

Hon. Speaker: Hon. Members, the screen is clear. I now call upon the mover to reply.

Hon. Wilfred Odalo: Thank you, Hon. Speaker. Before I reply, let me take this opportunity to thank all my Members. This is the only Committee which doesn't have a problem of quorum. Thank you my Vice Chair for doing a good work. Let me also take this opportunity to thank the secretariat led by my namesake, Wilfred Manyi, Eric, Alphonse and the team for the good work.

Also let me take this opportunity because at times when things are very hot, you must display the elderly face. Today evening after the lengthy meeting, I will be heading to Nasra. Those who know Nasra are aware of what I say. We will make peace there. So, tonight by 9.30 p.m., I will engage our families to have peace.

Having said that, I beg to reply.

Hon. Speaker: Thank you.

#### (Applause)

#### (*Question put and agreed to*)

Hon. Speaker: Hon. Members, in the sequence of the Order Paper, we had deferred the Statement Hour. I direct the Clerk to make a pronouncement of the same.

#### **STATEMENTS**

Hon. Speaker: Hon. Peter Mwangi? You may proceed, Hon. Hashim.

### BUSINESS APPEARING BEFORE THE ASSEMBLY FOR THE WEEK BEGINNING 25<sup>TH</sup> APRIL 2024

Hon. Hashim Kamau: Thank you, Mr. Speaker. Pursuant to Standing Order 47 (2) (a), on behalf of the Assembly Business Committee, I rise to give the following Statement regarding the Business appearing before the Assembly for the week beginning tomorrow 25<sup>th</sup> April 2024 at 2.30 p.m.

Hon. Speaker, the Assembly Business Committee met yesterday on Tuesday 23rd April 2024 to allocate Business for the week for consideration by this Assembly. In that regard, allow me to brief the Assembly as follows:

That, tomorrow, Thursday 25th April 2024, under Order Nos. 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 and 13, the Assembly shall be considering the under listed business items respectively:

1. A Procedural Motion by the Leader of Majority Party to reduce the Publication Period of the Nairobi City County Supplementary (I) Budget Estimates for the financial year 2023/202; and First Reading, Second Reading, and Committee of the Whole County Assembly to consider the Nairobi City County Supplementary (I) Budget Estimates for the financial year 2023/2024;

Hon. Speaker: Make a comment on that because we are past that stage, Hon. Member.

Hon. Hashim Kamau: No, this tomorrow.

Hon. Speaker: Okay.

Hon. Hashim Kamau: We will be having First Reading, Second Reading, and the Committee of Whole House for the Supplementary Appropriation Bill that has been passed today.

Hon. Speaker: Thank you.

Hon. Hashim Kamau: Thank you, Hon. Speaker.

- 2. The Second Reading of the Nairobi City County Persons with Disabilities (Amendment) Bill, 2023. (Assembly Bill No.7 of 2023), sponsored by Hon. Chege Mwaura; and
- 3. The Second Reading of the Nairobi City County Food Safety and Fortification Bill, 2023 (Assembly Bill No.10 of 2023), sponsored by Hon. Elijah Sanzo Omungala.

Lastly, Mr. Speaker, on Tuesday 30<sup>th</sup> April 2024, under the Order No. 8, the County Assembly will be considering the Motion by Helen Okello, resolving that:

- i. The County Executive Committee Member in charge of Water & Sanitation through the relevant authority commence the process of registration of all borehole water vendors in Nairobi City County and forward a detailed database for each Ward to this Assembly within sixty (60) days from the date of adoption of this Motion: and
- ii. The County Executive Committee Member in charge of Water & Sanitation develops a policy to guide the operationalization of borehole water vendors within Nairobi City County.

That is next week on Tuesday.

Hon. Speaker, the Assembly Business Committee urges members of this Assembly to familiarize with the aforementioned Bills and prepare accordingly for debate, through the help of our Research Department. Details of the Bills can be obtained in the Notice Paper, being the last page of day's Order Paper. Copies of the Bills can be accessed online on the Assembly website or at the Table and Journals office.

Hon. Speaker the Assembly Business Committee shall be informing this Assembly through its designee, on the allotted business every Wednesday during the Statement Hour for timely preparations.

Finally, Hon. Speaker, the Assembly Business Committee will again meet on 30<sup>th</sup> April 2024 at the rise of the Assembly to ballot business for the subsequent week.

Hon. Speaker, I now wish to lay the Statement on the Table of the Assembly. Thank you. **Hon. Speaker:** Thank you.

#### REQUEST FOR STATEMENT REGARDING LACK OF FOOD IN UTHIRU MUTHUA HEALTH CENTRE MATERNITY WARD

Hon. Speaker: Hon. Peter Mwangi, you may proceed.

**Hon. Peter Mwangi:** Pursuant to Standing Order 47 (2) (c), I wish to request for a Statement from the Chairperson the Sectoral Committee on Health Services regarding lack of food in maternity wards in the County, and specifically Uthiru Muthua Health Centre in Uthiru Ruthumitu Ward.

Hon. Speaker, Part II, Section Two of the Fourth Schedule of the Constitution of Kenya, 2010 stipulates the function of the County Government specifically on the County Health Service, including in particular promotion of primary health care. Hon. Speaker, the maternal delivery period is a critical time for expectant mothers. The lack of due care, which include nutrition, may result in risk of chronic disease in offspring later in life. Food and nutrition play a vital role not only during the developmental period of the fetus, but also at birth. Poor maternal nutritional status is closely associated with abnormal fetal growth patterns, low birth weight and mortality, amongst others.

Hon. Speaker, despite the critical role food and nutritional plays, it is alleged that a section of hospital in the county, and specifically Uthiru Muthua Health Center in Uthiru Ruthimitu Ward do not provide food for expectant mothers admitted in the maternity ward, in violation of Part II, Section Two of the Fourth Schedule of the Constitution of Kenya. Additionally, the hospital is in a sorry state in terms of hygiene, since there are no cleaners. This poses an additional risk to the mothers and newborns who are prone to infection at this stage.

Hon. Speaker, in the Statement, the Chairperson should inquire into and report on:

- i. Whether the County Executive is privy of the insufficient food in County hospitals, and specifically Uthiru Muthua Health Centre in Uthiru Ruthimitu Ward.
- ii. Whether there are sufficient human resource personnel, cleaners in the said hospital, and if yes, what is the justification for the non-hygienic condition.
- iii. Measure the County Executive is taking to ensure there is sufficient food and adequately staffed kitchen in the County hospitals across the County; and
- iv. Measures the County Executive is taking to ensure there is clean and hygienic environment in the County health centers across the County.

Thank you, Hon. Speaker.

Hon. Speaker: Hon. Chair, Health Committee.

Hon. Maurice Onyango: Thank you, Hon. Speaker. I will remind the Hon. Member that tomorrow we are going to have a very serious meeting with the 17 MOH, CEOs and the Executive. Therefore, we will invite him as a friend of the committee because those are the issues, which we are going to handle tomorrow at 12.00 p.m. In the precinct of the Assembly. These ate issues to do with the FIF, a fund which should be rolled down to the facilities so that the issue he has raised...

**Hon. Speaker:** Kindly, please can you give an undertaking?

Hon. Maurice Onyango: I am still inviting him tomorrow. However, we are going to give a full detailed report in one week's time.

Hon. Speaker: Thank you. Hon. Member is that okay.

Hon. Peter Mwangi: Thank you, Hon. Speaker. With due respect to my Chair Health, I want to remind him that my people are his people, this is because my ward is his bedroom. Therefore, we need to do faster, seven days is too long.

Hon. Speaker: Seven days is okay, Hon. Member. Hon. Antony Maragu.

# REQUEST FOR STATEMENT REGARDING MUSHROOMING OF UNAUTHORIZED BUS OPERATORD ACROSS ALL ROUTES IN THE COUNTY

Hon. Antony Maragu: Thank you, Hon. Speaker. Pursuant to Standing Order 47 (2) (c), I wish to request for a Statement from the Chairperson of the Sectoral Committee on Transport and Public Works regarding the mushrooming of an unauthorized bus operators across all routes in the County.

Hon. Speaker in the recent past, the residents of Nairobi City have witnessed increased number of bus operators operating without the necessary County approvals. More specifically, a bus operator by the name Risen Company Sacco that ought to operate only in Mfangano - Ronald Ngala Streets, but have traversed and are now operating in both Mfangano - Ronald Ngala Street and Tom Mboya junction without the requisite documents of operation.

It is alleged that despite the Sacco being barred from using Ronald Ngala - Tom Mboya Junction a year ago, the said Sacco still maneuvers and operates in the said areas, thus resulting in traffic snarl-ups on the side roads due to reckless picking and dropping of passengers by the said bus company.

Further, the Sacco has invaded the pedestrian walkways and interrupted businesses around the area, and as a result posing accident related threats and decline in form of businesses.

Hon. Speaker, in the Statement, the Chairperson should inquire into and report on:

- Whether the County Executive is aware that reason Sacco buses are back in i. operation in Ronald Ngala - Tom Mboya junction.
- Whether the Sacco has been authorized to use the Ronald Ngala Tom Mboya ii. junction, and whether it has complied with the requisite requirements for all Matatus plying in the city; and

iii. Measures the County Executive is taking to:

- a) Stop the mushrooming of an authorized bus operators and specifically Risen Company Sacco from operating in the county
- b) Illegal stages across all the roads in the county in order to enhance free flow of traffic; and
- c) Establish modern clearly marked bus stages in order to minimize road accidents and bring dignity to users of public transport in the County.

Thank you, Mr. Speaker.

Hon. Speaker: Chair, Transport Committee? the Vice Chair?

Hon. Lawrence Odhiambo: (Member spoke off the mic)

Hon. Speaker: Thank you. Hon. Maragu please kindly.

Hon. Antony Maragu: Hon. Speak, I think 14 days is sufficient.

Hon. Speaker: Thank you.

#### ADJOURNMENT

**Hon. Speaker:** Hon. Members, we have come to the close of the Business, and for that reason, the Assembly stands adjourned to tomorrow, Thursday, 25<sup>th</sup> April 2024 at 2. 30 p.m.

### The House rose at 3: 40 p.m.